
[image: image1.jpg]) SIC PERMANET

| _rocus | 4
Ontario

VT INCEPIT

2\




ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

	FILE NO.:
	EB-2015-0141
	Rogers Communications   Partnership et al

	VOLUME:

DATE:

	Technical Conference
January 12, 2016

	


EB-2015-0141
THE ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

Rogers Communications Partnership et al.
Motion to Review and Vary Decision EB-2013-0416/EB-2014-0247 as it relates to the Specific Charge for Cable and Telecom Companies Access to the Power Poles charged by Hydro One Networks Inc.
Hearing held at 2300 Yonge Street,

25th Floor, Toronto, Ontario,

on Tuesday, January 12, 2016,

commencing at 9:37 a.m.

--------------------

TECHNICAL CONFERENCE
--------------------

IAN RICHLER
Board Counsel
JENNIFER LEA
HAROLD THIESSEN
Board Staff
JIM FAUGHT

TIMOTHY PINOS
The Carriers (Rogers

CHRIS SELBY
Communications Partnership, TELUS Communications Company and Quebecor Media ("the Carriers")
ANITA VARJACIC
Hydro One Networks Inc. (HONI)
ALLAN COWAN

ERIN HENDERSON

VINCE DeROSE*
Canadian Manufacturers & Exporters (CME)

RICHARD STEPHENSON
Power Workers' Union (PWU)
MARK RUBENSTEIN
School Energy Coalition (SEC)

MICHAEL JANIGAN
Vulnerable Energy Consumers

BILL HARPER
Coalition (VECC)
*appearing by teleconference
1--- Upon commencing at 9:37 a.m.


2Appearances


4HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. - PANEL 1


H. Andre, J. Boldt, D. Price

4Presentation by Mr. Boldt:


6Questions by Mr. Pinos:


25Questions by Mr. Harper:


46Questions by Mr. Rubenstein:


49--- Recess at 11:01 a.m.


49--- On resuming at 11:23 a.m.


49CARRIERS - PANEL 1


     M. Piaskoski
49Questions by Mr. Harper:


53--- Whereupon the conference concluded at 11:28 a.m.




16EXHIBIT NO. KT1:  HYDRO ONE SUBMISSION in 2010.


17EXHIBIT NO. KT2:  DECISION AND ORDER OF THE OEB DATED DECEMBER 17, 2010.





30UNDERTAKING NO. JT1:  TO PROVIDE A CALCULATION BASED ON 2013 AUDITED COSTS


32UNDERTAKING NO. JT2:  TO UPDATE TABLE I IN CARRIERS 4C


42UNDERTAKING NO. JT3:  TO PROVIDE MORE DETAIL ON THE NUMBERS, INCLUDING A BREAKDOWN OF WHICH ATTACHERS PAY THE FULL PRICE, WHICH PAY SOME PORTION OF THE PRICE, AND WHICH DON'T PAY ANY PRICE






Tuesday, January 12, 2016
--- Upon commencing at 9:37 a.m.

MR. RICHLER:  Good morning, everyone.  My name is Ian Richler, and I am counsel with the OEB.  With me from OEB Staff is Jennifer Lea, and I expect we will be joined shortly by the case manager, Harold Thiessen.


This is the technical conference for EB-2015-0141, which is a motion brought by Rogers Communications Partnership and several other telecommunications companies collectively known as the Carriers to review and vary the Board's decision in EB-2013-0416/EB-2014-0247, as it relates to the pole attachment rates that Hydro One Networks Inc. charges for the use of its power poles.


A few quick administrative matters before we get started.  First, this technical conference is being transcribed and the transcription will form part of the record of the proceeding.  For the benefit of the reporter and for everyone else please be sure to speak into your microphone when you press the button.  The green light will come on.


Second, a reminder that pursuant to Procedural Order No. 5 a settlement conference will commence immediately after this technical conference ends, so please stick around.  Based on what we've heard so far it sounds like the technical conference probably won't need to go much past midday, but we will see.


Third, on a more substantive note, I would like to remind everyone that in Procedural Order No. 4 the Board indicated that, and I quote, "the OEB's review of the pole access charge in this proceeding will be within the context of the current approved OEB methodology as described in decision and order RP-2003-0249 issued March 7, 2005", and that methodological issues would be dealt with in the context of a broader policy review.  I trust all the parties who are asking questions today will bear that in mind.

In a similar vein, I trust everyone received a copy of Procedural Order No. 6 yesterday, where the Board agreed to accept Hydro One's supplementary evidence which the Carriers had objected to, while noting that arguments about what is properly included in the approved methodology can be dealt with in the hearing if necessary.


Finally, we've got witnesses from both Hydro One and the Carriers here to answer questions.  I understand Hydro One will present its witnesses first, then the Carriers, and we'll be sure to squeeze in a break sometime mid-morning.

Now that that is all out of the way, we can proceed with appearances.  Mr. Pinos, would you like to start?

Appearances:


MR. PINOS:  Sure.  I'm Tim Pinos from Cassels Brock & Blackwell on behalf of the Carriers, with my associate, Chris Selby, and with me is our witness and client, Michael Piaskoski, from Rogers Communications.

MS. VARJACIC:  Good morning.  Anita Varjacic, counsel for Hydro One Networks.  With me I have Allan Cowan, director of regulatory affairs, Erin Henderson, who is assisting with some computer issues here, and I'll introduce the witness panel separately once everyone has made their appearances.  Thank you.

MR. HARPER:  Good morning.  My name is Bill Harper.  I'm the consultant for the Vulnerable Energy Consumers Coalition.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Mark Rubenstein, counsel for the School Energy Coalition.


MR. STEPHENSON:  Hi, I'm Richard Stephenson.  I'm counsel for the Power Workers' Union.  Yeah, let me see if I can get this to work.  Hello?  Okay.  Richard Stephenson, counsel for the Power Workers' Union.


MR. RICHLER:  Thank you.  Oh, and we're also joined, I think, by the facilitator, who will be helping with the settlement conference later on.  Would you like to introduce yourself, please?


MR. FAUGHT:  Yes, my name is -- is that on?  Yes, it's on.  My name is Jim Faught.  I'm the settlement conference facilitator, so hopefully we get to that sometime today.  We'll see what happens.

MR. RICHLER:  Thank you.  Ms. Varjacic, would you like to introduce your witnesses, please.

MS. VARJACIC:  Sure.  Thank you.  So starting furthest away from me we have Henry Andre, who is manager of transmission and distribution pricing, regulatory affairs, for corporate and regulatory affairs with Hydro One.  Mr. Andre can answer any questions on depreciation, cost of capital, bill impacts, and revenue requirement.


In the middle of our witness panel we have John Boldt, who is manager of program integration.  You'll soon find out that Mr. Boldt, I think, is going to be the subject of most of your questions.  He can answer most of the details about the joint use rates.


And closest to me I have Dave Price, who is assistant director of forestry services, and Mr. Price can answer questions for you in terms of the details of the forestry program.

HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. - PANEL 1

Henry Andre

Jim Boldt

Dave Price


And with your indulgence, before I turn the panel over to questioning, if you don't mind, I would just like to have Mr. Boldt perhaps, if he can, explain to us or take us through the supplementary evidence that Hydro One filed on December 22nd, 2015, and perhaps the easiest way to do that, Mr. Boldt, is if we look at page 3 of 6, where you have a table with a number of columns.


You can maybe just take everyone through what each of the various columns represents.
Presentation by Mr. Boldt:


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  Thank you.  Good morning, everyone.

In our supplementary evidence the column numbers are across the top, and I'll reference those column numbers and explain what we did in this evidence.  To start with column number one -- and it was taken from RP-2003-0249, which is the inputs, which actually in the same as column two the values from that hearing number calculated to the 2235.


You'll also note in here that there are direct and indirect costs, and the allocation factor for two-and-a-half attachers.  So it matches what the Board did in the 2005 decision.


In column three, this was our pre-filed evidence, and what it was is we took basically the 2005 decision and we input our new numbers or our numbers at the time, values, to come up with our pre-filed value of 3,705 per attachment.


Column four, which is the Carrier's proposal -- and it was what they submitted in November 20th of 2015.  Column five was due to the motion.  When it was brought to our attention we actually took -- we corrected the inputs from 2012, where there were two inputs corrected.  One was the number of poles that we had, which is used to calculate net embedded costs, pole maintenance, capital care and costs, and depreciation, as well as, we did have a correction in the depreciation values.  We corrected those for 2012 actual numbers.


Column number six was based on a suggestion of the Carriers in the response to SEC number 1, and what we did was we did the same -- used the same methodology on our corrected inputs, using 2014 actual numbers based on 2014 actuals to come up with those values at the bottom.


And column number seven, basically it's the forecast 2015 costs using the same methodology, and it was suggested by the intervenors as well as the Carriers in the response to the HONI number 3 to determine what the costs are.

MS. VARJACIC:  Thank you.

MR. RICHLER:  Mr. Pinos, I think you'll be asking questions first.
Questions by Mr. Pinos:


MR. PINOS:  Yes.  Can everyone hear me?  Good.


Good morning, members of the panel.  I think, having regard to the ruling in the procedural order issued yesterday, I should just preface my questioning by saying that any other questions I ask without prejudice, the position of the Carriers before the Board as to the relevance of any of the questions I ask about the supplementary evidence.


Just to get an understanding of your respective participation in the actual development of the pole rate first submitted in 2013 and then reflected in the supplementary evidence, do I understand, Mr. Boldt, that you would be primarily involved in the overall calculation of the pole rate?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, I was.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And Mr. Andre would be responsible for the depreciation piece of that?


MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And Mr. Price would be responsible for the vegetation management piece of that?


MR. BOLDT:  Yes, what they do in the field is what --


MR. PINOS:  Yes.  So I take it you would look to him to get inputs with respect to the vegetation management costs on an aggregate basis?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  In terms of the pole rate originally submitted, and here I'm referring to column 3 of the table on the screen.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  I'll try to stick with that rather than go back to the original evidence, because the figures in column three accurately reflect the original submission filed in EB-2013-0416?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And with respect to those numbers, you reflect the currently approved rate from the 2005 decision in the column to the left?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And were you working in this field with Hydro One at the time the OEB approved the rate from the 2005 decision?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, I was.

MR. PINOS:  Were you involved at all in that hearing?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, I was.

MR. PINOS:  So I take it you're familiar with where the OEB got the methodology for the rate as approved in 2005?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And that's reflected in a couple of appendices in the 2005 decision?


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  With respect to the maintenance L&F cost of 7.61, which is in the middle of the first column number 2, do you see that?

MR. BOLDT:  Uh-huh.


MR. PINOS:  You'll agree with me that where the OEB got that number was from a Milton Hydro study that had in turn had been used by the CRTC in developing a rate?


MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And you were aware of that Milton Hydro study at the time?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  I was aware they used Milton 1995 numbers, yes.


MR. PINOS:  That’s right.  And I take it you were also aware that in adopting the Milton 1995 numbers, that they excluded tree trimming or vegetation management from pole maintenance?

MR. BOLDT:  To be completely honest, at the time I wasn't a hundred percent clear on it, how they developed it.  But I am aware now that yes, it is.

MR. PINOS:  But I take it that had you -- in the course of your work on the 2005 hearing, had you read the CRTC decision where they adopted the Milton study, or elements of the Milton study and established a methodology for the CRTC pole rate?


MR. BOLDT:  Yes, we were working with CEA at the time.

MR. PINOS:  And I take it you have, at some point in time, read the CRTC decision.


MR. BOLDT:  Correct, yes.


MR. PINOS:  And you're aware that the CRTC explicitly excluded vegetation management from its calculation of pole maintenance?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  It excludes it, yes.

MR. PINOS:  And so at some point following the OEB approved rate, you would have been aware that the pole maintenance element of the 2005 rate didn't cover vegetation management?

MR. BOLDT:  In this decision.  But in our contract, it does, in our agreement with --


MR. PINOS:  That's right.  And you determined -- and the contracts were developed following the 2005 decision?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And you determined that in the contract, the rate would cover vegetation management?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  And you determined not to attempt to charge vegetation management separately to the individual carriers?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  Because you thought the 22.35 rate, at least at that point in time, was sufficient for your purposes?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct, other than that it would be maintaining forestry, not from not make-ready, as laid out in the agreement.

MR. PINOS:  Right, and we know -- I don't think there is any issue between us here that the make-ready costs are separately charged when there are such costs.


MR. BOLDT:  Uh-huh.


MR. PINOS:   And that, for lay people who might read this at some point, those are when a carrier wants to make a new attachment to a pole, or attachment to a new pole, and there has to be tree trimming or vegetation management to enable that.


MR. BOLDT:  Yes, that's correct, for new attachments.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  Now at the same time that you filed the submission evidence for the joint use telecommunication pole rate in EB-2013-0416, you also filed requested rates for other attachers?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  And one category of those other attachers was generators?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. PINOS:  And another category of those other attachers were LDCs?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And my understanding is that with respect to --


MR. BOLDT:  If I may, just for a second?  Clarity on the generators; there's two types there's generator rates.  There’s generator telecom and there’s generator power space.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  Can you explain for the record what the difference between the two is?

MR. BOLDT:  So the generator telecoms, when they put a telecom in the telecommunication space, will pay the same as all the other carriers that use the telecom space on a pole.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  And so when they put a power attachment, they pay the power rate?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And I understand that with respect to the joint use charges in EB 2013-0416, in addition to the rate for joint use telecommunication, you proposed joint use rates for LDCs and generators?

MR. BOLDT:  That is correct.


MR. PINOS:  And I take it those rates were approved?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  And I take it that -- would it be fair to say that in your understanding that -- do you understand that there may be poles operated by Hydro One that have both telecom and either LDC or generator attachments to them?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. PINOS:  And with respect to the rate charged for LDCs and generators, those approved rates include a maintenance charge that includes your calculation of vegetation management costs for that pole?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  So do you know whether you have poles where there are LDCs and JNS attached to the same pole?


MR. BOLDT:  I'm not aware of that, no.

MR. PINOS:  But there may be some overlap between telecom on the one hand and LDCs and generators on the other hand?


MR. BOLDT:  There will be situations where there's telecom and LDCs on a pole owned by Hydro One.

MR. PINOS:  Yes, so at each of the -- with respect to the joint use rate proposed by hydro for telecom and the joint use rate approved for LDCs, each of those rates has a vegetation management component?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And those, I take it, are calculated based upon Hydro's gross vegetation management cost divided by the number of poles it has?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  There's no more sophisticated analysis to determine actually how much vegetation management is attributable to the wires in the LDCs or the telecom space?

MR. BOLDT:  No.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And I don't know whether I should address this to you or Mr. Price, but has Hydro One done any surveys or sampling to try and identify what the typical costs are for vegetation management that are actually experienced on the types of poles that carriers are on?

MR. BOLDT:  Are you deeming carriers alone, by themselves?

MR. PINOS:  Yes.

MR. PRICE:  We've not done no survey specifically on that.

MR. PINOS:  And I take it neither have you done surveys with respect to vegetation management costs attributable specifically to LDCs’ presence on a pole?

MR. PRICE:  We have not, no.

MR. PINOS:  So just in terms of understanding the evidence, the vegetation management costs were -- per pole were calculated by taking the entire vegetation management cost for Hydro One and dividing it by the number of poles that you counted?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct, and then there is a cost allocation factor.

MR. PINOS:  That’s right; I understand that.  But in terms the threshold is that you're effectively spreading vegetation management cost pro rata among the whole population of poles across the province?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  Now before you made the filing in the rate application 2013-0416 resulting in the new rates for generators and LDCs, there were pre-existing rates for generators and LDCs?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. PINOS:  And my understanding is one of those rates was a negotiated rate.  I think it was the LDCs rate.


MR. BOLDT:  That's my understanding, yes.

MR. PINOS:  And my understanding is that rate was also based on the 2005 Board decision, and methodology endorsed in that decision.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  Not with the same percentages, though.

MR. PINOS:  I understand that.  But in terms of working off the categories of direct and indirect costs and the starting points used, i.e., the Milton study, those were used as the starting points for the buildup of the rate?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  I will in a technical conference in 2010 -- let me just get you the number.  It's EB-2010-0228.  That's -- in that technical conference what we did was we proposed a 10-foot power space using the methodology based from the 2005.

MR. PINOS:  Right.

MR. BOLDT:  With the percentage.

MR. PINOS:  Exactly.  But likewise, the maintenance cost included in that rate didn't include any vegetation management costs?

MR. BOLDT:  It included vegetation management.

MR. PINOS:  Well, it covered vegetation management, but it used as a starting point the figure from the Milton study that excluded vegetation management; is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And then the other rate which I understand pre-existed the rates approved as a consequence of EB-2013-0416 was the generator rate.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  And I understand that that was a rate set most recently as pursuant to an application filed by Hydro One in 2010?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And likewise, that rate used the methodology from the 2005 OEB decision in terms of making a proposal for a generator rate?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, it was the base.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And likewise, in terms of approaching pole maintenance expenses, the figure used was the same figure used by the Board in the 2005 decision?

MR. BOLDT:  Sorry, you've kind of lost me.

MR. PINOS:  Sorry.  The 7.61 figure for pole maintenance from the 2005 decision, that's the rate you used for the generator rate in 2010?

MR. BOLDT:  With trees added, with forestry added.  In both the generator and the LDCs hearings in the rate it includes both lines and forestry.

MR. PINOS:  With respect to the --


MR. BOLDT:  To the current rate.

MR. PINOS:  The current rate.  The previous rate that was set in 2010, though, my understanding is that you used the same $7.61 pole maintenance cost in setting the -- in arriving at a generator rate?

MR. BOLDT:  No, we used same methodology, meaning we took our pole, our lines cost divided by the poles, to get our lines maintenance fee, and then we took forestry cost, dividing it by the number of poles, to come up with the forestry.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  Well, I don't want to dwell on this point too long, but I'm a bit confused.  I've got a few copies.  I would like to hand you the Hydro One submission from 2010 in respect of the generator rate sought at that point in time.  I have a number of copies.  I'm not sure I've got one for -- I think I have everyone -- one for every party, but maybe not one for every person.  So I'm going to ask Mr. Selby to -- yeah, well, let me -- let me  -- a couple for the panel, and then we'll distribute the rest of them.

MR. RICHLER:  Mr. Pinos, we'll mark this as an exhibit.

MR. PINOS:  Yes, please.

MR. RICHLER:  So we'll number this Exhibit KT1.
EXHIBIT NO. KT1:  HYDRO ONE SUBMISSION in 2010.


MR. PINOS:  Mr. Boldt, why don't you take a second and have a look at this document and let me know if you recognize it and are able to answer a couple of questions about it.

MR. BOLDT:  It is a little bit different than what I have.  I have the decision from the technical conference, which was EB-2010-0228.

MR. PINOS:  Do you have the decision and order?

MR. BOLDT:  I have the decision and order, yes.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  I have copies of that too, so why don't I give you that too, and then we can look at them together.

MR. BOLDT:  Okay.

MR. PINOS:  But you -- just while it's being circulated, do you remember this document as being the decision?

MR. BOLDT:  I don't remember this, and this particular one being Exhibit B, but I do have the decision in front of me.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  Were you involved in the development of the rates submitted at that time in 2010?


MR. BOLDT:  I was.  Yes, I was.

MR. RICHLER:  Let's mark this as Exhibit KT2 for identification.  This is the -- appears to be the decision and order of the OEB dated December 17, 2010.
EXHIBIT NO. KT2:  DECISION AND ORDER OF THE OEB DATED DECEMBER 17, 2010.

MR. PINOS:  And have you had a chance to look at it?  Are you ready to --


MR. BOLDT:  I'm familiar with it, yes.

MR. PINOS:  -- try to answer some questions with the...


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  Let's start with the decision and order.  My understanding is that the level of charge in paragraph 33, that the Board set the generator joint use charge at 28.40?


MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And that was following an initial request that the -- you proposed 28.61?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, it was agreed upon, 28.61.

MR. PINOS:  Yeah.  It had been agreed upon.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, it had negotiated.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And then you submitted some revised costs and the rate shrunk a little.


MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And if we can go to the June 30th submission, which is referenced in the decision and order, and if you can't answer the questions let me know, but my understanding is that in this submission the Board was told by Hydro One that the methodology that you used to establish the rate was the same methodology as the Board had endorsed with respect to telecom carriers in 2005?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, it's coming back to me now what had happened.  In the lines and forestry maintenance costs --


MR. PINOS:  Yes.

MR. BOLDT:  -- previous to the position I was in, or that I am in, there was a calculation made, a formula used, and what it did was it took the lines costs, the lines costs divided by the number of poles, and then what it was doing was it was taking the forestry costs and reducing it by 90 percent.  So it was reducing it to 10 percent, dividing that by the number of poles, and then taking the appropriate cost allocation from there.

And we addressed that in our filing in G2 -- I can get you the number, if you wish -- when we submitted it in EB-2013-0416.  Just give me thirty seconds here.

So you'll notice in EB-2013-0416, Exhibit G2, tab 5, schedule 1, page 32 of 41, lines 9 through 11, what we are stating here is that the increase in the generator charge is due to a correction in the forestry portion of maintenance.

MR. PINOS:  I agree with that.  Right now, I want to talk about the 2010 rate and how that was built up.

MR. BOLDT:  Right.

MR. PINOS:  So is it fair to say that the rate that you applied for in 2010 that was approved in the decision and order dated December 17, 2010, was based upon the 2005 Board methodology?

MR. BOLDT:  It was, with forestry included.

MR. PINOS:  And if I can ask you to turn to page -- if I can ask you to take the June 30, 2010, letter and that's exhibit number -- I'm sorry, Mr. Richler, I forget.

MR. RICHLER:  June 30?

MR. PINOS:  Yes.

MR. RICHLER:  The June 30, 2010, letter is Exhibit KT1.

MR. PINOS:  KT1, okay.  If I could ask you to turn -- the pagination is a bit -- if I could turn to tab 2, schedule 1, which is headed “Methodology to determine the annual joint use charge”?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  Is that page 1 of 3?

MR. PINOS:  Yes.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, okay.

MR. PINOS:  And if we can turn to the second page and look at Table II, you see there cost of space calculation components for year zero?

MR. BOLDT:  Sorry, where were we again -- oh, yes, yes.

MR. PINOS:  And if you look at the fourth entry under indirect cost maintenance lines and forestry --


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  -- that's expressed to be $7.61?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  And that's the same number that's in the calculation in the 2005 Board decision?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, all the numbers are the same as the 2005 decision.

MR. PINOS:  And those are the numbers you used to build up the proposed rate for the generator in this application to the Board?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, other than these numbers here, as is it states, maintenance lines and forestry, that is identical to column 2 in our thing, and the forestry should be taken out of there, because that's not forestry in there.

MR. PINOS:  But you charged the same for pole maintenance in your proposal for this 2010 rate as you did with respect -- as the Board endorsed in the 2005 telecom rate?

MR. BOLDT:  This, as this states up above, it's the decision from RP-2003-0249 and shows Table II below.  And where it says indirect costs, the net embedded costs, the depreciation, the weighted average cost to capital, and then it says maintenance lines and forestry at $7.61.

MR. PINOS:  Yes.  And that was utilized in this rate because that's what it says, doesn't it?

MR. BOLDT:  It was – well, that's the 2003 decision, and they're adding lines and forestry in the $7.61 in this chart.

MR. PINOS:  But if we can turn back to page 1 just to understand, and go to the bottom of that page 1 of 3 headed “Methodology to determine the annual joint use charge”, it says in the last line, During the initial rate R period, year 0 to year 4, the cost of power space calculation will utilize the component prices included in appendix 2 of the Board's -- can I just say 2005 decision?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  So those figures from that decision were used in this decision?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  All right.

MR. BOLDT:  With additions.

MR. PINOS:  I understand.  But the same $7.61 maintenance figure was used in this submission?

MR. BOLDT:  I believe this table is only quoting what was the decision, which is found in appendix 2 of the decision, 2003-0429, other than it's stating "and forestry."


MR. PINOS:  But you'll agree with me that that 7.61 was used as the starting point for maintenance with respect to the generator rate filed in this document?

MR. BOLDT:  We used the methodology with different percentages from the 2003-0249, which is appendix 2, which is the 7.61 which is Milton in 1995.

MR. PINOS:  Okay, thank you.  That's all I wanted to clarify.

Now if we can go back to your supplementary evidence for a few minutes, and if we can go to page 1 of 6 in the supplementary evidence, and go to the last two paragraphs of that page, the paragraph starting with -- in the EB-2013-0416, the three paragraphs there and the following paragraph.

In the last paragraph on that page, you note that the number of poles used in your original filing in EB-2013-30416 was 1,730,300 poles in your distribution network in Ontario; is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And then you say, or the evidence says the actual pole count that should have been used is 1,535,344.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  When was this error discovered, or this discrepancy discovered?

MR. BOLDT:  It would have been during -- after the motion, and we were responding to your IRs.  That’s when we looked at the numbers again.

MR. PINOS:  Can you explain why there was a discrepancy?  Because in your answers to interrogatories, you refer to things being drawn from audited financial statements for 2012.  Is your pole count not something that ever gets audited?

MR. BOLDT:  It was a number that I was given in error when we did this.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And do any of the members of the panel understand why there was an error, why it was 200,000 different from what you now say it is?

MR. BOLDT:  Just a second?

MR. ANDRE:  So my understanding is that there are numbers of poles available from the finance group, like the finance asset database sometimes has a reference to number of poles.  But the primary purpose of the finance information is to track the cost of the poles and the issue -- I know in the past there have been issues identified using the finance source.

So whenever -- in our main application, we would typically go to the asset management group who do the maintenance on the poles and replace poles, and they would have the latest and best estimate for numbers of poles.

So I think that was the issue.  The initial number used was from the finance.  But then it was determined that no, that's not the appropriate source to use as the most definitive record of what the number of poles are.  It should be the asset management group, and the second number came from the asset management group.


MR. PINOS:  Okay.  But I take it that with respect to the rate application EB-2013-0416, that anytime you were required to reference or use the number of poles to calculate a cost or some other figure, you used the 1.7 million figure?


MR. ANDRE:  No, in our application any of the numbers other than what was used for miscellaneous charges, because that's sort of done on the side by John's group, all of the rest of the evidence would be using the information from the asset management group as far as number of poles.


MR. PINOS:  Okay.  I understand.  And the second change or discrepancy you identify at the bottom of page 1 of 6 is the depreciation cost, and you indicate that it was based upon net book value rather than net acquisition pole cost.  When was this discrepancy discovered?


MR. ANDRE:  So that one was actually in my review of the interrogatory responses that John's group had prepared.  Late in the preparation of those interrogatory responses I noticed that there might have been an issue here.  It appeared to me that they were doing the calculation on net book value instead of gross book value, which is clearly inappropriate for calculating annual depreciation, so I flagged that for John's group, but it was very late.  I think it might have been the Friday before the weekend when the interrogatories were due.


So again, it was during the preparation of the interrogatories, but very late in the game, which is why it didn't get identified in the interrogatory responses.


MR. PINOS:  Okay.  So the interrogatory responses reflect the --


MR. ANDRE:  The older depreciation number, yes.


MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And were you able to determine how the wrong number was used and identified?  Or I should say identified and used?


MR. ANDRE:  Yeah, you know, the nearest I can figure is somebody just pulled -- they were using net embedded costs for doing the capital carrying cost calculation, and the person who pulled that number to calculate depreciation just pulled that same number, not appreciating that carrying costs is done on net book value, but annual depreciation should be done on gross book value, so they just pulled the incorrect value.


MR. PINOS:  Okay.  Does this change to depreciation, would that affect any of the other calculations in the 2013 rate application?


MR. ANDRE:  You mean outside of the miscellaneous charges?


MR. PINOS:  Yes.


MR. ANDRE:  No, absolutely not.


MR. PINOS:  Okay.  So those are done on a standalone basis?


MR. ANDRE:  Yeah, those were done by the -- all of the other financial exhibits are prepared by the finance group, and, yeah, there is no issue in there.  It was just with respect to the miscellaneous charge calculation.


MR. PINOS:  Okay.  Those are all my questions.  Thank you very much, members of the panel.


MR. RICHLER:  Thank you, Mr. Pinos.


Who would like to go next?

Questions by Mr. Harper:


MR. HARPER:  I guess I can go next if enough people are pointing to me.  That's fine.  It's Bill Harper for VECC.


I guess to start at the beginning, could you turn up your response to OEB Staff number 1?


MS. HENDERSON:  Hydro One?


MR. HARPER:  Yes, Hydro One's response, yes.  That's Exhibit 1, tab 1, Schedule 1, page 1.


MR. BOLDT:  We have that, Bill.


MR. HARPER:  And here you indicate that the cost used to calculate the 2015 telecommunication joint rate were based on your 2012 audited cost?


MR. ANDRE:  That's correct.


MR. HARPER:  Now, in your original application for your custom IR application for 2015 to 2019, which you filed at the end of -- you filed, I think, in January 2014?


MR. ANDRE:  Actually, I think it might have -- the filing date was actually December, I believe, December 2013, if I recollect correctly.  But I stand --


MR. HARPER:  But I guess you included in that -- as the January '14 you included in that application, if I'm not mistaken, actual costs for 2013, they report actual costs for 2013 in that application that you filed?


MR. ANDRE:  I don't know when there was an update.  I would imagine there was an update filed that might have included -- so we would have updated the core OM&A and capital exhibits to reflect the latest actuals.  Subject to check I'll take that, but I don't think that same update -- the evidence that was submitted with respect to the miscellaneous charges would have been -- as I said, I think the original filing was December, and it would have been prepared sort of in the middle of '13 sometime, in terms of what we filed.


MR. HARPER:  Well, I think what you're actually talking about is in June of 2014 you filed an update which was reflecting -- which included your audited costs for 2013 in June of 2014 as part of that proceeding --


MR. ANDRE:  Okay.


MR. HARPER:  -- you filed an update to reflect your audited costs for 2013, and you updated the application for 2013 costs to reflect your audited numbers.


MR. ANDRE:  Okay.  So that was in June, you're saying.


MR. HARPER:  That was in June of 2014.  If you can take that subject to check?


MR. ANDRE:  Okay.  Sure.


MR. HARPER:  Now, I guess what I was curious about was at the same time you audited those 2013 -- you filed those audited costs for 2013, you didn't -- you didn't go back and recalculate your joint use rate based on audited costs for 2013 which you now had.


MR. ANDRE:  That's correct.  We didn't do that.


MR. HARPER:  And I guess, so -- and I guess, what was your view for wanting to use audited costs as opposed to, say, non-audited costs?  Because you had 2013 costs in your original application.  What was your view as to why you required using audited costs?


MR. BOLDT:  I didn't really have a view on that.  I just used the actual 2012 -- yeah, like, the -- I believe the original methodology did use actual costs, and when I calculated this in 2013 the only values that I had was 2012 actuals.


MR. HARPER:  Okay.  So it's based on the fact -- the original application was based on the fact you actually did the calculation sometime during 2013 then?


MR. BOLDT:  Early '13, yes.


MR. HARPER:  So that -- but based on the information you had at the time that we were reviewing the application you actually had 2013 audited costs, if I'm not mistaken.  Is that correct?  As of the June 2014 update.


MR. BOLDT:  Yes, we would have had those costs, yes.


MR. HARPER:  Now, in the various IR responses you provided to the Carriers here, you provided 2013 costs for book values -- that's in Carriers 4C -- for depreciation, which is in Carriers 5B, and for maintenance costs, which is in Carriers 8C.


And I guess, could you tell me if those costs you used in responding to the Carriers' IRs for 2013 were audited 2013 costs?


MR. BOLDT:  Sorry, they're all 2012 costs.


MR. ANDRE:  Could you turn us to the -- let's have a look at the Carriers response --


MR. HARPER:  No, the response to Carriers 4C.


MR. ANDRE:  4C?  Maybe we can have a look at that.


MR. HARPER:  You have got 2013 costs here for net book value, for average net book value, and for net embedded costs.  Can you tell me, are those audited -- based on audited 2013 costs?


MR. ANDRE:  I'm just -- yeah.


MR. BOLDT:  This is it here.


MR. ANDRE:  Yeah.  Yeah, I certainly -- I can confirm that the net book values are all from our fixed asset data base and they would be audited costs for those years --


MR. HARPER:  And similarly, if I turn the page to your response to Carriers number 5B, and look at there the -- you've got depreciation costs per pole, and those were based on your audited costs for 2013?


MR. ANDRE:  Yeah, they would be.  The starting point is the acquisition value, and, yes, those would be the costs in our fixed asset database, which again I assume would be the final numbers for those years, yes.


MR. HARPER:  Interesting enough, if you look at this calculation, if I'm not mistaken -- and this is following up on the conversation you just had with the counsel for the Carriers -- is this calculation depreciation actually uses acquisition costs in its calculation, as opposed to net book values, which is doing it correctly for both 2012 and 2013, if I'm not mistaken?


MR. ANDRE:  Yeah, you're right, Bill, this one does use the correct calculation.


MR. HARPER:  Right.  Okay.  So at the time you did the IR responses one place it was wrong, here you actually did it the correct way.


MR. BOLDT:  Yeah, we did that -- in the responses to the IRs, we did notice the error, and that's why we showed these tables that way.


MR. HARPER:  I guess, given that this information was available at the time -- you know, this audited information was available at the time you actually -- you were actually considering the application, would you be able to provide a calculation of what your view of what the rate would be based on 2013 audited costs, similar to what you did using 2012 audited costs?

     MR. BOLDT:  You're looking for 2013 actuals?

     MR. HARPER:  Yes, the same calculation as what you filed based on 2013 audited costs.

     MR. BOLDT:  We can do that as an undertaking.

     MR. RICHLER:  So we will mark that as undertaking JT1.  That's a calculation based on 2013 actual costs -- audited costs.

UNDERTAKING NO. JT1:  TO PROVIDE A CALCULATION BASED ON 2013 AUDITED COSTS

     MR. HARPER:  And you also have been talking with counsel for the Carriers about the update that you filed in December last year, and which was based in part on actual data for 2014.

Can you confirm for me whether that actual data was based on audited 2014 costs?

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, it is.

     MR. HARPER:  Okay, fine.  Now I notice that in calculating the rate, you used the 2014 -- excuse me, the 2012 audited cost to calculate some of the capital rated values.  But for the loss of productivity and administration costs, you simply used the 1995 values from RP-2003-0249 and escalated them up to 2012 using 3 percent per annum.  Am I correct?

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, that's correct.

     MR. HARPER:  And in response to Carriers -- you don’t have to turn them up, but it’s Carriers interrogatories 9 and 10 -- you’ve indicated that you had not performed an analysis of the employee activities and related costs associated with these particular cost items.

I was wondering if you can explain to me why you didn't do that, and why you relied strictly on escalation of historical costs?

     MR. BOLDT:  It's a huge undertaking and we hadn't -- we simply hadn't done.  We hadn’t looked at it.

     MR. HARPER:  Okay, fine.  I'll take that as your answer, then.  Would you then turn up your response to Carriers number 4A?

     MR. HARPER:  That’s Exhibit I, tab 4, schedule 4, page 3, that's correct.

     Actually, I think the Carriers’ counsel has addressed my questions with respect to 4A.  I would like to move down to 4C.  Here I notice that you have a pole count for the years 2010 through 2015.  But for 2012, you’ve got the old number there.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

     MR. HARPER:  I was wondering, would it be possible for you to update this table as well, putting in what should be the correct numbers for the quantity of poles for each of the years 2010 through 2015?

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, we can do that as an undertaking.

     MR. RICHLER:  That will be undertaking JT2.  That's an update of table I -- and can you just remind me of the pinpoint reference please?  Table I in?

     MR. HARPER:  In the response to Carriers 4C.

     MR. RICHLER:  In response to Carriers 4C, thanks.

UNDERTAKING NO. JT2:  TO UPDATE TABLE I IN CARRIERS 4C

     MR. HARPER:  And I would like to you turn up your response to VECC 5B, which is found at Exhibit I, tab 3, schedule 5.

     MR. BOLDT:  VECC which – sorry?

     MR. HARPER:  Actually, it’s VECC interrogatory 5B, which is found in Exhibit I, tab 3, schedule 5, page 2 of 3.

     MR. BOLDT:  I have it.

     MR. HARPER:  Here we ask you to tell us what the number of attachers per pole was, and you provided a response based on information from 2015 audited system, and the number you came up with is 1.3.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

     MR. HARPER:  Would you have any knowledge what the similar number would have been for 2012?

     MR. BOLDT:  I didn't do the calculation, and our GIS system has been updated since 2012.

     MR. HARPER:  Yes, I understand GIS systems unfortunately don't keep historical information.  They typically just give updates, and once you do an update, you lose the historical.


MR. BOLDT:  Right.

MR. HARPER:  Do you have any sense as to whether the number would be materially different from the 1.3?

     MR. BOLDT:  It would be very similar.

     MR. HARPER:  Thank you.  Could you – actually, in response to this VECC 5B, you indicated that there were 650,293 telecom wireline attachers, and that the total was 767,761 overall for the total number of attachments.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

     MR. HARPER:  Now maybe you can keep your finger there, and also turn up Carriers 1D.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

     MR. HARPER:  You're faster than I am.  Here I guess we can see the same numbers, the 650,293 under 2015 for the number of wireline attachments.  And if I added that to the other attachers on the next page, I get the same total number of 767,761; correct?

     MR. BOLDT:  That's correct, yes.

     MR. HARPER:  Sorry, I'm just trying to -- just give me a minute here.

I would like to look at the 2012 values where we see, if we look at the response to Carriers, for 2012, the number of wireline attachments is 605,181.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

     MR. HARPER:  I wonder if you can go to your main application -- to the application for the 2015 to 2019 rates, and turn up Exhibit G2, tab 5, schedule 1, page 38.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, I have it.

     MR. HARPER:  If we look at rate code -- the row that’s labelled rate code 29.

     MR. BOLDT:  It's actually page 39.

     MR. HARPER:  Okay.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, number 29.

     MR. HARPER:  If you look under 2012, under joint use rate for telecom companies per pole per year, we have a number of 278,252, if I'm not mistaken?

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, that's correct.

     MR. HARPER:  I was wondering if you could explain to me what the difference is between this 27,258, which you’ve got here as the number of telecom attachers, and the 605 number that we were just talking about.

     MR. BOLDT:  I believe what's happening there is that Bell Canada has been excluded in the 275 -- or sorry, the 278,252.

     MR. HARPER:  Can you tell me why they would have been excluded?

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, it is covered by a separate agreement based on -- if you're looking at a joint use rate, they're not paying a fixed rate, although there are a small number of poles that we've included.  We call it Bell MEU for utilities that were purchased, that they pay the regulated rate because it hasn't been integrated into an existing 60-40 split with Bell.

     MR. HARPER:  Okay.  And the same would be the issue, because I was looking at your -- if I stay on this exhibit here, I was looking at your 2015 number of 287,167, which I appreciate is a forecast, but is materially different from the forecast number you used of about the 650,000 we were talking about earlier.

And the discrepancy would be the same issue around the inclusion or exclusion of the Bell attachments?

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, that's correct.

     MR. HARPER:  If you could keep your fingers again on that response to Carriers 1D, and go back to your response to the Sustainable Infrastructure Alliance interrogatory 6C, which I believe is found at Exhibit I, tab 2, schedule 6.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, I have it.

     MR. HARPER:  If I look under the table you’ve provided there for 2012 for telecom, you have a third number again of 292,526 as the number of attachments.

Can you tell me what's the difference between that number and the two numbers we've just been talking about already?


MR. BOLDT:  I do believe that in the summer when we did this that Bell was left out, but we did include generator telecom, so that there are some variances in the numbers.


MR. HARPER:  So that --


MR. BOLDT:  On Exhibit I, tab 4, Schedule 1, page 4D it includes Bell, all our telecom, plus generator telecom.


MR. HARPER:  Sorry, so the wireline attachments includes Bell, all other telecom, generator telecom, would also include LDC telecom as well?


MR. BOLDT:  LDC does not have telecom.  As far as I know, B.C. company, could be their affiliate.


MR. HARPER:  Well, I'm sorry, that's what I meant.  I meant like an LDC affiliate --


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  Yes.


MR. HARPER:  -- it would include those telecom attachments as well.


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.


MR. HARPER:  Right.  Okay.  Fine.  Thank you very much.  Can we turn to VECC 5C?  And that's at Exhibit I, tab 3, Schedule 5.  And here you indicate that there are 319,055 attachments that pay the OEB approved rate.  I assume -- is that number for 2015?


MR. BOLDT:  Yes, and that number -- when I asked the MS to pull that number we have in our agreement that there is a calculation.  Basically what it says is their number of pole attachments that they're attached, where their main line is.  We take 10 percent of that, and what we -- we pay -- they pay for service poles to get across the road to a home or something.  And then there is only one other company that pays less than 10 percent because based on an audit they have the right to reduce it.  So it's that number with the 319 actually counted the service poles twice.  So the actual number of attachments based on the end of 2015 is 297,498.


MR. HARPER:  As of 2015.


MR. ANDRE:  So just to be clear, that is a correction to that 319 John has identified, that that number should correctly read 297,498 for the reason --


MR. HARPER:  Would that actually result in a correction to the total -- if we go up to the response to VECC 5B, where you have 650,293 telecom wireline attachments you use in that 1.3. calculation, would that actually change that number there as well?  Because I'd assume the 319,055 was part of the 650,293, and if
that's --


MR. BOLDT:  Sorry, yeah, the 650,293, which included Bell telephone -- or telecom carriers as well as the generator telecom.  And the correction in this number was a separate question, in how many telecom, so we kind of -- and that's where the error was made --


MR. HARPER:  So it doesn't affect the response you gave to VECC -- VECC 5B?


MR. BOLDT:  No, no, it does not.


MR. HARPER:  Okay.  Fine.  I just wanted to clarify that.  Now, the -- if I go to the Sustainable Infrastructure -- SIA Interrogatory No.5.  That's at Exhibit I, tab 2, Schedule 5.  And it says here in applying the pole rate to a -- in applying the pole rate, basically, the annual rate is charged to everybody who connects before the end of June, but an annual rate is not applied to people if they connect in the last half of the year in that first year of their connection.


Is my understanding correct on that?


MR. BOLDT:  So the way this works is in January of every year, every calendar year, we take a look at the number of attachments as of December 31st, the 1st of January, and we issue the invoice for current year, so they would pay for all the attachments that they're attached to at the beginning of the year.  And then what this is saying is if they add additional attachments between January and June we would invoice for those attachments as an addition.  And then from July to December we do not do that.  We do not invoice them for the full year.


MR. HARPER:  So if I go back to your response to VECC 5B where we're talking about the -- where you calculated the 1.3 attachers per pole, which was based on information from your GIS as of August 2015.


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.


MR. HARPER:  Would those numbers say the 650,293 telecommunications wireline attachers, would they be the total number of attachers, including those who weren't paying anything for the year?  Or were they just the ones that were paying for that year, assuming anybody who connected between the end of June up to August 15th would not be charged for 2015?


MR. BOLDT:  Sorry, if you could just repeat that again, please.


MR. HARPER:  If I go back to VECC 5B, and here you calculated the 1.3 attachers per pole using information from your GIS system as of August 24th, 2015, and you talked about the number of telecommunication wireline attachers being 650,293, what my question was, was, is that the total number of attachments as of that point in time, or is that the number of paying attachments as of that point in time, recognizing that in that 250,293 would be some customers who connected after June 30th of 2015 and therefore aren't paying for 2015?


MR. BOLDT:  That's correct.  The 650,293 would be at the time that we actually pulled the data --


MR. HARPER:  Right.


MR. BOLDT:  -- but there could be some people not paying for that half a year that they would have been attached.


MR. HARPER:  Fine.  Okay, fine.  I was just wanting to clarify what the number was that you're giving me there.


Now, could you go back to Carriers 1D again?  That's Exhibit I, tab 4, Schedule 1.  And I was curious, because here you had the number of wireline attachments as 605,181, and you had the pole attachment fee of 2,235, and the gross revenues of 6.4 million.  I notice if I take the 6.4 million and divide by the number of wireline attachments I come up with a number in the order of $10.60.  You can take that subject to check?  You know, 6.4 million divided by roughly 600,000 is going to give you roughly $10?


MR. BOLDT:  Yes, I can verify that that's approximately what it's going to be.  But the number of attachment here also includes Bell Canada, which, we don't invoice them.  Now, I can, if you wish, for 2015, I can give clarity on the numbers broken out for telecom, like I stated earlier.  The total number of attachments is 297,498, and for non-reciprocal, meaning a company that don't own poles that we share, which is the majority of the carriers, there are 230,016 of those.


And like I stated earlier, that would be the full poles.  And then in our agreement we charge 75 percent, or 16.76, for what we refer to as a service pole, and there is 21,367 of those, and without complicating things, most of them -- all but one -- take their full poles, and you take 10 percent of it, and that's their service poles.


And Rogers has done an audit, and their number is 7.5, so it's the total number of Rogers poles times 7.5, and then 10 percent of everyone else, and so you won't be able to do the math, in the sense that it's a straight 10 percent times the calculation.


MR. HARPER:  Well, I was wondering, maybe help us all understand this a little more closely.  Maybe you could take -- maybe if you could take -- maybe you could take your 2015 numbers there, okay?  You've got a --


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.


MR. HARPER:  -- 2015 numbers, and you've got an estimated gross revenue of 11.6 million based on a total number of attachments of 650,293.


And just give us a schedule that shows how, you know, how you come up with the 11.6, how many of the 650-odd-thousand are paying the full rate, how many are paying a partial rate, how many are paying no rate, let's say, if they're that year, and so just to reconcile back to the 11.6, I think that might help everybody in the room understand and put the numbers all in one place, if that's --


MR. BOLDT:  Well, I can tell if you want to write it down, or we could take an undertaking.  Which would you prefer?


MR. HARPER:  I think if there was a table in front of us it would probably be clearer for all of us, as opposed to trying to make a table up from your testimony.


MR. BOLDT:  Okay.  We can take it --


MR. ANDRE:  But Bill, the key issue that I'm hearing from John is that the 650, though, includes a large number of those poles are covered as part of the joint use agreement with Bell, so, like, the 60-40 split that John has been referring to that don't pay the joint use charge.  So that's like the bulk of them.  But I agree, then there's those service poles, and it may be helpful to understand the numbers --


MR. HARPER:  Well, I guess at the end of the day you're using number of poles, number of attachments, to come up with what's the OEB -- you know, what's going to be the OEB approved rate, assuming everybody is paying that rate.  But now we're hearing a large people -- a large number of people are paying a rate that is substantially less than that and will be paying substantially less than that, I assume, during your CIR period, depending upon when these various agreements expire?


MR. BOLDT:  Right.  So there is --

     MR. HARPER:  There is a difference here, and the question is how is the difference accounted for.  Like, is it something Hydro One eats.  It’s something that grosses up the rates to the other carriers, who are paying the full rate?  Is it something ratepayers eat?

     How is the difference accounted for?  And maybe you want to – you can give me an answer to that, or maybe you want to ponder on that a little bit and give me an answer in writing.  That will be fine.


But that's where I was going at the end of the day with these various questions.

     MR. ANDRE:  I think the most appropriate would be for us to take an undertaking, and provide a response to that in writing.

     MR. RICHLER:  So we'll call this undertaking JT3.  And if I can attempt to summarize in a few words, it would be to file something in writing that provides a little more detail on the numbers we've been talking about, including a breakdown of which attachers pay the full price, which pay some portion of the price, and which don't pay any price.  And that's obviously just a very rough summary.

UNDERTAKING NO. JT3:  TO PROVIDE MORE DETAIL ON THE NUMBERS, INCLUDING A BREAKDOWN OF WHICH ATTACHERS PAY THE FULL PRICE, WHICH PAY SOME PORTION OF THE PRICE, AND WHICH DON'T PAY ANY PRICE

     MR. HARPER:  Thank you.  Turning to another topic, I would like you to turn back to Staff number 1 again.  And this is your response, specifically part D.  And this is where you are dealing with the maintenance lines and forestry component of your calculation using 2012 costs.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, I have it.

     MR. HARPER:  I was trying to relate these values back to those that were actually in your EB 2013-0416 application.  And I think I indicated I would be referring to this exhibit in the letter we sent prior to Christmas.

So if you can turn up from that application Exhibit C1, tab 2, schedule one -- excuse me, tab 2, schedule 2, page 20.

     MR. BOLDT:  Is it table 6?

     MR. HARPER:  Yes, it is.

     MR. BOLDT:  Okay.  I have it yes.

     MR. HARPER:  In terms of the line maintenance costs, I can readily see from table 6 where you got the 8.65 that you use in the calculation for line patrols.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

     MR. HARPER:  However, in your calculation, you used 5.04 million for defect correction.  If I look at this table here, I'm not too sure what the equivalent number is. But I was -- in this table here, there is 9.1 million for preventative and corrective maintenance.

I was wondering sort of what the difference was between the 5.04 you use in your calculation and the 9.1 you're reporting as maintenance costs in your application?

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  So the breakdown of preventative and corrective maintenance is defect corrections at 5 million, regulator and reclosure maintenance at 3.5 million, and ABS and LBS switch maintenance at 0.6 million.

MR. HARPER:  So I guess the view was those other two items are specifically related to the power --

     MR. BOLDT:  Power equipment, yes.

     MR. HARPER:  -- equipment, and therefore they’re not to be included, which makes sense.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

     MR. HARPER:  Okay, fine.  Similarly, if you go to page 32 of the same exhibit in table 10 --

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, I have it.

     MR. HARPER:  -- this is the vegetation management cost that you included in your original application?

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

     MR. HARPER:  And again I can see the 7.1 and the 34.7.  In your calculation, you used $87.1 million in line clearing costs.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

     MR. HARPER:  It’s a small difference, but I noticed there was 87.4 here, and I was wondering whether that was a conscious decision to exclude some costs, or just a matter of rounding, or something else.

     MR. BOLDT:  It would have been a rounding issue.

     MR. HARPER:  Okay, fine.  Thank you very much.  I would like to go to your response to Carriers 14B.

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes, I have it.

     MR. HARPER:  Here you indicate that Hydro One Networks receives payments from wire line attachers where it’s necessary to modify or replace the pole in order to accommodate an attachment.

You also indicate that these payments are not included in the average embedded costs per pole used to calculate the joint use rate.

I was wondering if you can clarify for me whether they are not included because they're treated as a capital contribution, which is taken out of the capital cost, or they’re not included because they're treated as an offset to maintenance?

     MR. ANDRE:  The former.  So they're not included because they're treated as a capital contribution.

     MR. HARPER:  Okay.  You don't have to turn it up, but the – I think you’ve talk about this already.  The Carriers’ response to Hydro One's interrogatory number 8 indicated that wire line attachers are charged for tree trimming, if required as part of the make-ready charge.  I think that's something you’ve already discussed with the Carriers counsel?

     MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

     MR. HARPER:  Are the revenues from that treated as a capital contribution as well, or as an offset to maintenance, just out of curiosity?

     MR. BOLDT:  Just a second.  What would happen is if --and these cases are very rare.  When we go to do that make-ready, it is charged against the job, which we would call an 063 in hydro business, and those costs would then be offset as a capital contribution.

     MR. HARPER:  Fine.  Those are all my questions.  Thank you.

     MR. RICHLER:  Thank you.  I think we should take a break soon.  But before we do, can I just ask is there anyone else in the room who has questions for Hydro One's witness panel?  Okay.

And how about on the phone line?  I think -- Mr. DeRose, do you have any questions?

     MR. DEROSE:  No, I do not.  Thank you.

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I just have one small area so can we do that before the break; it should be a minute or so.

     MR. RICHLER:  Is that okay with the witnesses, to continue going?   Okay, why don't we do that then.

Questions by Mr. Rubenstein:

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I want to follow-up on how you determine the administration and the loss of productivity.

My understanding is – and I think you had this conversation with Mr. Harper -- you took the 2005 number that was approved in the CCTA decision, and then used an inflation factor of 3 percent every year to get it to 2012, or in the chart 2014 or 2015?

     MR. BOLDT:  That's correct.  So just to expand on it a little bit, when we looked at the price, we didn't do a field study in the sense that rolling trucks for trouble calls that they would have for loss of productivity.

What I did was I took a look at the decision from 2003, and in 1999 it was 62 cents and inflating it to 2003, which went to 69 cents, it ended up being 3 percent a year.  That was my original.

And then there was a PEG, which was the Pacific Economics Group, in March 2013, in its summary of inflation TPF and benchmarking issues, on page 8 of that it talks about AW inflation for different industry aggregates, and the third line says utilities industries at 2.72, which then confirmed more around the 3 percent.

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And the whole point of this is to try to get to – I guess it’s because you didn't do your own analysis of what the direct and administration costs would be for 2012, or 2014, or 2015, was to determine, sort of at a high level, what those costs would be now.  Am I correct?  What your costs would be either in 2012, or in 2014, or 20 -- that's the whole point of what you were attempting to do?

     MR. BOLDT:  Correct.  I was looking at a reasonable inflator that would give us a value without the -- in some of the other cases that are going on, we have 297,000 attachments.  I haven't studied what the administration cost is to basically the $297,000 that would come in based on the number of attachments that we have.

In some smaller LDCs that are -- they may have 25,000 poles which, depending on their administration costs, they really study that to inflate that administration.

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Let me ask you about the base number, the number you used and then you inflated.  That's the number that the Board approved in 2005; correct?


MR. BOLDT:  That is correct, yes.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And I think there was conversation with the Carriers' counsel.  You have knowledge of that proceeding and how those numbers were derived?


MR. BOLDT:  Yes, the -- in 2005 they -- the CRTC estimate was 62 cents in 1999.  And then it says "plus inflation", and -- which took it to 69 cents.  And what I did was I took this at 2003 when it started, and all I did was I take 2,099 at 62 and how they derive 69.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Sorry, can you just back up?  I just want to understand your understanding of the zero -- how they got to, let's say, for administration costs the 0.69.


What's your understanding of how they reached that --


MR. BOLDT:  The CRTC decision --


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Yeah.


MR. BOLDT:  -- at 62 cents and inflated it.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  That they took the CRTC decision and then inflated it?


MR. BOLDT:  Correct.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  All right.  And do you know at what year they inflated it to?  What year they were looking at, how many years of inflation they used?


MR. BOLDT:  I don't have that in here, other than I looked at it in 2003-0249, and that's where I inflated it for four years.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  All right.  Thank you very much.


MR. RICHLER:  Thank you.  I think OEB Staff's questions which related to the updated numbers and the supplementary evidence have been answered already.  So I think that's -- that concludes the questioning of Hydro One's witness panel.  Thank you, Mr. Price, Mr. Boldt, Mr. Andre.  Let's take a 15-minute break, and we'll be back at 11:15.  Thanks.

--- Recess at 11:01 a.m.
--- On resuming at 11:23 a.m.
     MR. RICHLER:  Welcome back.  Now we're going to have questions for the Carriers witness.  Mr. Pinos, would you like to introduce him quickly, please?
CARRIERS - PANEL 1

Michael Piaskoski

     MR. PINOS:  Sure.  As everyone knows here, the evidence on behalf of the Carriers was filed by Michael Piaskoski, who is director of municipal and industry relations at Rogers Communications, and he has been in that position for the past eight years.  His CV is attached to his evidence and everything else, I think, is fairly self-explanatory.
     MR. RICHLER:  Thank you.  Mr. Harper, would you like to go first, please?
Questions by Mr. Harper:

     MR. HARPER:  I just had a question on one of the interrogatory responses, and it was the one in response to Hydro One interrogatory number 7.
     MR. PIASKOSKI:  Is this Hydro One?
     MR. HARPER:  Yes, the Hydro One interrogatory with respect to the Carriers evidence.
     MR. PIASKOSKI:  I have it now.  Is this on?
     MR. HARPER:  And here you state -- here the evidence states:

“The Carriers further state that they currently contribute to vegetation management costs, when they are included as part of the make-ready cost the Carriers are required to pay when they install equipment on Hydro One's poles.”

Now, as I understand it, that's a one-time charge at the time of installation.
     MR. PIASKOSKI:  Yes, that would be correct, now it is.
     MR. HARPER:  You also state earlier in that same response:

“The Carriers acknowledge that they should contribute fairly to a portion of Hydro One's tree trimming costs that are directly related to their facilities.  However, the amount the Carrier should contribute as part of the pole rental rate is not within the scope of this proceeding.”
Besides this one-time make-ready cost, would it be fair to say that there could be ongoing tree trimming costs that are related to your facilities, over and above what's covered off by the one-time make-ready cost?
     MR. PIASKOSKI:  I think that's a fair assumption, yes.
     MR. HARPER:  Now, as I understand it, your view is they're not to be included in the pole rental rate, these costs are not to be recovered through the pole rental rate.
     MR. PIASKOSKI:  On the basis of the 2005 methodology, right, they're not to be included in the pole attachment rate.
     MR. HARPER:  Thank you for the clarification.  I guess -- so would it be fair to say that to the to the extent they're not included in the methodology, it is your view the Carriers should be billed for them separately?  To the extent there are such costs, the only other way to recover them would be to bill the Carriers for them separately.

Is that how you would see this being done, as long as we're living under the regime of the current methodology?
     MR. PIASKOSKI:  I mean, I think that's more of a question for the hydro companies.  But if they need to recover their tree trimming costs, it can be done outside of the rate.
     MR. HARPER:  I guess because what I was going to do --under such a regime, how would you -- you say that's something for the hydro companies to determine.  How would you see this invoice -- the amount of the invoice being determined?
Should we just let Hydro One go away, figure out what they think you should be billed, and send Rogers and other carriers bills for the tree trimming costs?  Or how should the quantum be established?
     MR. PIASKOSKI:  I don't know.  This is something I think that will be discussed in detail in the policy review, when the operating personnel from each of the companies can actually sit down and talk about what do they do when it comes to telecom facilities.
So I think that’s where it gets discussed.  I have no idea how it should be properly done.
     MR. HARPER:  You're talking about the policy review which, I guess, would be how things might be treated or might be done after the policy review is completed, depending upon how the Board proceeds going forward.

We're dealing with the here and now, which is the current situation, the pole rates established under the current OEB methodology.  If there are costs that are legitimately fair for the carriers to pay and they’re not included in the pole rental rate, what I'm struggling with is should we just leave it up to Hydro One to figure out what those costs are and send an invoice to you.
     MR. PIASKOSKI:  All right.  Can you repeat the question, because I'm not sure what you're getting at.
     MR. HARPER:  What I'm getting at is we've acknowledged that there could be costs, over and above the onetime make-ready vegetation costs, that are legitimate for carriers to pay that are related to their facilities -- vegetation management costs related to their facilities.

We've established that there could be such costs.  We've concurred under the current OEB methodology, they’re not to be -- your view is they're not to be included in the pole rental rate.

So I guess the only other way to recover them would be for Hydro One to send you a bill, and I guess on that basis, you know, I’m saying -- I’m concluding that the process is Hydro One should be preparing bills for you and sending them to you, based on their view of what these costs are.

Do you see another way that the carriers could be fairly contributing to these costs under the current OEB methodology?
     MR. PIASKOSKI:  I mean, we're sort of getting into uncharted territory.  But Hydro One could determine -- and it would have to be reasonable, verifiable, and there is as of yet no methodology for actually apportioning their tree trimming costs.  But yes, it could be done by way of invoice, if that's what you're asking me.
     MR. HARPER:  Thank you very much.  Those are all my questions.
     MR. PIASKOSKI:  Okay.
     MR. RICHLER:  Any questions from any of the other parties in the room?  How about on the phone, Mr. DeRose?
     MR. DEROSE:  No, thank you.
     MR. PIASKOSKI:  Mr. Rubenstein, you must have something.  No, I'm not a forestry expert.
     MR. RICHLER:  Staff has no questions, so that's it.  Thank you, Mr. Piaskoski.  And that concludes the technical conference.
--- Whereupon the conference concluded at 11:28 a.m.
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